1 2 2	COLLEGE OF LIBERAL ARTS AND SOCIAL SCIENCES BYLAWS									
3 4 5	ARTIC	LE I	MEMBERSHIP AND VOTING RIGHTS							
6 7 8 9	A.	All	e College is made up of faculty, staff, graduate assistants, and student workers. members of the College fulfill critical roles necessary to carrying out the mission he College and the University.							
10 11 12 13 14 15 16	В.	The faculty of the College consists of all full-time academic staff who have the rar or title of professor, associate professor, assistant professor, instructor, or lecture and who have at least fifty percent of their appointment in the College. This shall include faculty with such administrative titles as Program Director or Coordinator, School Director, and Department Chair or Head. This shall not include administrative titles of Associate Dean or above.								
17 18 19 20	C.	Only members of the College faculty shall be entitled to vote in College meetings. Voting privileges shall be extended to eligible faculty members on leave whenever feasible.								
21 22 23 24 25 26		sup me In s	Adjunct faculty, <i>emeritus</i> faculty, graduate assistants, student representatives, and support staff may attend and participate in College discussions as non-voting members and are invited to attend all official College functions and open meetings. In specific cases, they may serve on and provide recommendations to College committees.							
20 27 28 29 30 31	D.	Department bylaws shall specify whether non-tenure track faculty are voting members of the department and the nature and extent of their voting rights wit exception that non-tenure track faculty shall not vote on personnel issues.								
31 32 33										
34 35	Α.	The	The Dean							
36 37 38 39 40		1.	The Dean shall perform the functions enumerated under the <u>Statutes</u> <u>Article III, Section 3d</u> . The Dean shall also make recommendations on sabbatical leaves, merit pay, salary equity, and market salary adjustments (outside offers).							
41 42	В.	Pa	rliamentarian							
43 44 45		1.	The Dean may appoint a parliamentarian annually to advise the Dean and faculty on parliamentary procedures.							
46		2.	The rules contained in the latest edition of Robert's Rules of Order Newly							

47

48

49

50 51

52

53

57

59

65

67

ARTICLE III MEETINGS

54 There shall be at least one regular College meeting each semester, with the dates Α. 55 to be announced by the Dean at least two weeks in advance. The Dean, or designee, normally an Associate dean, shall be the presiding officer. The Dean 56 shall furnish members of the faculty written notice and agenda of each meeting at 58 least one week prior to the meeting.

bylaws, the UIS Faculty Personnel Policies, or with the Statutes.

Revised shall govern the conduct of business by the faculty in all cases to

which they are applicable and in which they are not in conflict with these

- 60 Special meetings may be called by the Dean, by the Executive Committee, or upon Β. 61 receipt of a written petition of 1/10th or more members of the college faculty. 62 Special meetings will be called within ten business days of the receipt of the 63 request. Only business stipulated in the call to the meeting may be transacted at a 64 special meeting.
- C. A quorum for any faculty meeting will be a majority of the members of the faculty. 66
- 68 D. Agendas for each regular meeting of the faculty will include approval of the 69 minutes of preceding regular and special meetings, a report from the Dean, reports from the Standing Committees at least once a year, together with a provision for 70 71 old and new business. Additional items may be included on the agenda as 72 specified by these bylaws. Members of the faculty who wish to include items on the 73 agenda of a regular meeting shall submit these items to the Dean at least fifteen 74 business days before the scheduled meeting.
- 76 The Dean shall distribute all notices, calls, and agendas to the faculty for college E. 77 meetings and shall prepare and distribute minutes of all meetings of the faculty. 78 The Dean or Associate Dean shall conduct college-wide elections and report 79 election results to the faculty.
- 80 81

82

83 84

85

86

87

88 89

90

91

75

ARTICLE IV **STANDING COMMITTEES**

The College shall have three standing committees: the Executive Committee, the Curriculum Committee, and the Personnel and Peer Review of Teaching Committee. The Chair of each standing committee will make a report of the Committee's activities to the College faculty at least once a year at the spring college-wide meeting.

The College Executive Committee may authorize the creation of ad hoc committees or task forces as is necessary to conduct the business of the College.

- 92 A. Executive Committee (CEC)
- 93

94 95 96 97		1.	The CEC will consist of four faculty who shall serve three-year staggered terms upon election at-large by the faculty of the college. No more than one representative from a department may serve on the committee at any one time.			
98 99 100			The Dean is an ex-officio member and chair of the CEC. There will be no other ex-officio members on the committee. The Dean may vote only to break tie votes. In the Dean's absence, the Dean's designee shall preside. When the			
101			CEC meets to prepare or give advice to the Chancellor, the President, or the			
102			Provost on the appointment or re-appointment of the Dean or to review the			
103			Dean's performance, the Dean shall not be present.			
104 105		2.	The duties of the CEC shall include those enumerated by the <u>Statutes, Article</u>			
105		Ζ.	III. Section 2 and Section 3. As representatives of the faculty, the CEC may			
100			create policies on matters not otherwise under the jurisdiction the CCC. The			
107			Dean may seek the CEC's advice on matters of salary equity and market			
109			salary adjustments (outside offers).			
110						
111	В.	Cu	rriculum Committee (CCC)			
112						
113		1.				
114			staggered terms upon election at-large by the faculty of the college. To serve			
115			on the curriculum committee, a faculty member must have served one year at			
116			UIS before their term commences. No more than one representative from a			
117			department may serve on the committee at any one time. The Dean or a			
118 119			designee will be a non-voting ex-officio member of the Committee. The CCC will elect from among its membership a chair at the first meeting.			
119						
120		2.	The duties of the CCC include: review and approval of additions, deletions, and			
121		2.	expansions of academic programs and program reviews, approval of course			
123			additions and deletions and program requirements, and advice on student			
124			petitions upon the Dean's or Dean's designee's request. The CCC will keep			
125			and maintain minutes available to the college.			
126						
127	C. Personnel and Peer Review of Teaching Committee (PPRTC)					
128						
129		1.	The PPRTC will consist of four tenured faculty and one instructor who			
130			shall serve three-year staggered terms upon election by the faculty of the			
131			college. No more than one representative from a department may serve			
132			on the committee at any one time. The Committee will elect from among			
133			its membership a chair at the first meeting. The instructor shall not			
134 135			participate in personnel matters relevant to tenure-system faculty's reappointment, tenure, and promotion.			
135						
130		2	The duties of the PPRTC include recommendations to the Dean on merit			
137		۷.	pay, reappointments, non-reappointments, tenure, and promotion			
130			decisions. Any additional procedures permitted by the UIS <i>Faculty</i>			
140			Personnel Policies and used by the Committee to make personnel			
141			decisions must be reported to the College faculty.			

142 143	2	The Deer Deview of Teaching Drearon is required for all new tenure
143	5.	The Peer Review of Teaching Program is required for all new tenure- track faculty and instructors as a formative process. The formative
144		
145		process assists faculty in examining and evaluating their teaching for the
		purposes of self-improvement and development. This process is
147		separate from the summative process, which systematically assesses
148		teaching as a professional faculty activity in connection with personnel
149		decisions.
150	4	The duties of the DDDTC include memoring the Deer Deview of Teaching
151	4.	The duties of the PPRTC include managing the Peer Review of Teaching
152		Program, training peer reviewers, informing participating faculty of the
153		program requirements and deadlines, creating and implementing
154		procedures to assess the program, and implementing modifications to
155		the program, as needed.
156		lection Dressdures for College Standing Committees
157	D. E	lection Procedures for College Standing Committees
158	1	Elections shall take place vie web based voting and menitored by the Deep or
159	١.	Elections shall take place via web-based voting and monitored by the Dean or
160		dean's designee.
161 162	2.	No later than three weeks after spring semester begins, the Dean or dean's
162	Ζ.	designee shall ask for nominations of eligible faculty to stand for election to the
163		College Executive and the College Curriculum Committees by secret ballot.
165		College Executive and the College Curriculum Committees by secret ballot.
165	3.	The nominees who receive the most votes shall be elected and their names will
167	0.	be sent forward to the Dean. College faculty will be notified of the election
168		results no later than the week after spring break.
169		results no later than the week after spring break.
170		
171	ARTICLE	V UNIT STRUCTURE AND LEADERSHIP
172		
	A. TI	
173 174	A. TI	he Chair/Head or School Director
173	A. TI 1.	he Chair/Head or School Director
173 174		
173 174 175		he Chair/Head or School Director The Chair/Head or School Director is elected for a term of three years by the
173 174 175 176		he Chair/Head or School Director The Chair/Head or School Director is elected for a term of three years by the unit faculty and must be approved by the Dean and VCAA in order to serve.
173 174 175 176 177		he Chair/Head or School Director The Chair/Head or School Director is elected for a term of three years by the unit faculty and must be approved by the Dean and VCAA in order to serve. The Chair/Head or School Director is responsible to both the faculty and the
173 174 175 176 177 178 179	1.	he Chair/Head or School Director The Chair/Head or School Director is elected for a term of three years by the unit faculty and must be approved by the Dean and VCAA in order to serve. The Chair/Head or School Director is responsible to both the faculty and the Dean.
173 174 175 176 177 178		he Chair/Head or School Director The Chair/Head or School Director is elected for a term of three years by the unit faculty and must be approved by the Dean and VCAA in order to serve. The Chair/Head or School Director is responsible to both the faculty and the Dean.
173 174 175 176 177 178 179 180	1.	he Chair/Head or School Director The Chair/Head or School Director is elected for a term of three years by the unit faculty and must be approved by the Dean and VCAA in order to serve. The Chair/Head or School Director is responsible to both the faculty and the Dean.
173 174 175 176 177 178 179 180 181	1.	he Chair/Head or School Director The Chair/Head or School Director is elected for a term of three years by the unit faculty and must be approved by the Dean and VCAA in order to serve. The Chair/Head or School Director is responsible to both the faculty and the Dean. Eligibility and Selection
173 174 175 176 177 178 179 180 181 182	1.	he Chair/Head or School Director The Chair/Head or School Director is elected for a term of three years by the unit faculty and must be approved by the Dean and VCAA in order to serve. The Chair/Head or School Director is responsible to both the faculty and the Dean. Eligibility and Selection
173 174 175 176 177 178 179 180 181 182 183	1.	 he Chair/Head or School Director The Chair/Head or School Director is elected for a term of three years by the unit faculty and must be approved by the Dean and VCAA in order to serve. The Chair/Head or School Director is responsible to both the faculty and the Dean. Eligibility and Selection a. Internal Selection
173 174 175 176 177 178 179 180 181 182 183 184	1.	 he Chair/Head or School Director The Chair/Head or School Director is elected for a term of three years by the unit faculty and must be approved by the Dean and VCAA in order to serve. The Chair/Head or School Director is responsible to both the faculty and the Dean. Eligibility and Selection Internal Selection Only unit tenured and tenure-track faculty are eligible to be nominated
173 174 175 176 177 178 179 180 181 182 183 184 185	1.	 he Chair/Head or School Director The Chair/Head or School Director is elected for a term of three years by the unit faculty and must be approved by the Dean and VCAA in order to serve. The Chair/Head or School Director is responsible to both the faculty and the Dean. Eligibility and Selection Internal Selection Only unit tenured and tenure-track faculty are eligible to be nominated and serve as the Chair/Head or School Director. In the case of
173 174 175 176 177 178 179 180 181 182 183 184 185 186	1.	 he Chair/Head or School Director The Chair/Head or School Director is elected for a term of three years by the unit faculty and must be approved by the Dean and VCAA in order to serve. The Chair/Head or School Director is responsible to both the faculty and the Dean. Eligibility and Selection Internal Selection Only unit tenured and tenure-track faculty are eligible to be nominated and serve as the Chair/Head or School Director. In the case of exceptional circumstances, the unit faculty may, by majority vote,
173 174 175 176 177 178 179 180 181 182 183 184 185 186 187	1.	 he Chair/Head or School Director The Chair/Head or School Director is elected for a term of three years by the unit faculty and must be approved by the Dean and VCAA in order to serve. The Chair/Head or School Director is responsible to both the faculty and the Dean. Eligibility and Selection Internal Selection Only unit tenured and tenure-track faculty are eligible to be nominated and serve as the Chair/Head or School Director. In the case of exceptional circumstances, the unit faculty may, by majority vote, petition the College Executive Committee for an exception to this

190 191 192 193 194			2. No later than three (3) weeks after spring or fall semester begins, the Dean or dean's designee shall ask for nominations of eligible faculty to stand for election by official secret ballot. Eligibility will be determined by unit bylaws.
194 195 196 197 198 199 200			3. The name of the person receiving a simple majority of the secret ballots cast will be sent forward to the Dean, subject to approval by the Dean and the VCAA. In the case of a tie that cannot be resolved by the voters, the Dean shall select the Chair/Head or School Director from those faculty members who received tie votes.
200 201 202 203 204			4. If no nominee receives a simple majority of the votes, a run-off vote for the top two nominees shall be held immediately under the same procedures outlined above.
205 206 207 208			5. If the Dean fails to approve the person selected by the faculty, the faculty will submit another nominee or may hold another vote under the same procedures outlined above.
209 210 211			Units will be notified of the Chair/Head or School Director selection within one month after the voting completes.
212 213		b.	External Selection
214 215 216 217			In some cases, it may be desirable to go outside the existing unit faculty for a Chair/Head or School Director. If the faculty and the Dean agree on the need for an outside search, the Dean will meet with the VCAA to discuss options. If an external Chair/Head or School Director search is authorized,
218 219 220 221 222			a search committee that follows University policies and procedures for searches for new faculty appointments will be formed. Given the time required to conduct an external search, the incumbent Chair/Head or School Director or another tenured faculty member shall normally be selected to serve as interim Chair/Head or School Director until the new
223 224			Chair/Head or School Director is in place.
225 226		C.	Appointment by the Dean
227 228 229			In the event the unit is unable or unwilling to select a Chair/Head or School Director, the Dean, after seeking the advice of the College Executive Committee, will select a faculty member to provide direction as the
230 231 232			Chair/Head or School Director. Should the Dean be unable to appoint a faculty member, the Dean's office will provide administrative support to the unit.
233 234 235	3.	Dut	ies of the Chair/Head or School Director
236 237			responsibilities and powers of the Chair/Head or School Director shall ude those listed by the <u>Statutes, Article IV, Section 2 e</u> .

239

238

240

241 242

243 244

245

246

247 248

249

Any additional powers delegated to the Chair/Head or School Director by the unit will be approved by the unit in writing and forwarded to the Dean.

4. Annual Evaluation

Both the unit faculty and the Dean shall evaluate the performance of the Chair/Head or School Director annually. The College Executive Committee and the Dean shall develop evaluation procedures and timelines.

5. Removal

250 Either the unit or the Dean may initiate discussions to recommend removal of a 251 Head or recommend non-reappointment of a Chair/School Director. Voting will 252 be by secret ballot forwarded to the Dean's office. The majority result will be communicated without identifying data. In the event the unit votes to remove 253 254 and the Dean wants to retain the Head or Chair/School Director, the Dean may 255 ask the unit for a second vote. If a simple majority of the unit votes to remove, 256 the Dean may initiate the process to remove a Head via a recommendation to the Chancellor but is not required to do so. For non-reappointment of a 257 258 Chair/School Director, the Dean and the unit will make recommendations to the 259 Vice Chancellor of Academic Affairs who will provide those recommendations to the Chancellor to appoint a new Chair/School Director at the beginning of 260 the next academic year according to the Statutes. The Chair/Head or School 261 262 Director may not vote on the question of removal.

6. Vacancies

If a Chair/Head or School Director position becomes vacant, or if a Chair/Head or School Director is unable due to illness or other circumstances to fulfill the duties of the position, the unit faculty and the Dean will select an Acting Chair/Head or School Director using the procedures specified in this Article until the Chair/Head or School Director is able to resume duties or until the normal selection process for the Chair/Head or School Director can take place.

272 273

275

263

264 265 266

267 268

269

270

271

274 ARTICLE VI AMENDMENTS AND REVISION OF BYLAWS

The College Executive Committee, the Dean, or any member of the College may propose an amendment to these bylaws for discussion at a regular meeting or a special meeting called for that purpose within the nine-month academic year, so long as copies of the proposed amendment(s) can be distributed to each faculty member at least one week prior to the meeting.

- 281
- After discussion, proposed changes to the bylaws of the College shall be distributed, together with a ballot, to those faculty members eligible to vote at least two weeks prior
- to the voting deadline.
- 285

- In order for an amendment to the bylaws to pass, the vote must be taken during the academic year; a majority of the faculty eligible to vote must cast a ballot; and the amendment must receive a two-thirds vote in support by the eligible faculty who vote.

At least every five years the Dean shall appoint a committee to examine the bylaws and propose such revisions as seem desirable.

ARTICLE VII INTERPRETATION OF THE BYLAWS

The College Executive Committee, by majority vote, may issue advisory opinions regarding the interpretation of these bylaws as are necessary to the orderly and expeditious conduct of College business.

ARTICLE VIII SEVERABILITY

Should any article or clause of these bylaws be found inconsistent with or in violation of any higher rule, regulation, or law, the offending article or clause of these bylaws shall be without force or effect to the extent of the inconsistency. Such a finding shall not invalidate any other article or clause of these bylaws.

Revised April 23, 2022